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CREWLESS TRAINS ON THE Q.N.S.& L.

Sketch: Diagram of Car Unloader Sequence 0204-002.pcx
Sketch: Diagram of Automatic Control Equipment on Locomotive 0204-003. pcx

In the barren wilderness of western Labrador, only 800 miles south of the Arctic Circle,
fully automatic equipment is controlling the operation of four trains running over a five mile
stretch of track near Labrador City. This railway, a link between the Smallwood Mines of the
Iron Ore Company of Canada and a crushing plant located at the terminal point of the Carol Lake
branch of the Quebec, North Shore and Labrador Railway, can handle 55,000 tons of raw ore each
day in 18-car trains hauled by 1750 horsepower general purpose diesel road-switchers. It is
perhaps significant that the railway that was first to run its trains with only a four-man crew
should be the first to eliminate the crew entirely, and with scarcely a word heard from the railway
unions who habitually oppose this sort of technological advance. While this short stretch of
railway 1s operated under conditions not enjoyed by railways everywhere, it will serve as a
continuing experiment in automatic train operation for years to come.

The trains are unique 1n other ways as well. The ore cars are about 40 feet long and have
air-operated drop sides to permit their load of ore to be pushed sideways out of the car. Each
car has a capacity of 95 tons and rides on two four-wheeled trucks that are fittedwithair-operated,
electrically-controlled disc brakes. The couplers are of a modern tight-lock design. Because
of the punishment that the cars must withstand while being loaded (the ore may drop several hundred
feet into the car), the car bottomis of abrasion-resistant steel over an inch thick, and overlapping
aprons close the gap between cars to prevent stray ore from finding its way to the track during
loading. The trains are arranged so that the loads are pulled by the locomotive from the loader
to the dumper and pushed in the opposite direction. No cabooses are used on the trains but the
last car has equipment to pick up control signals from the rails when it 1s leading the train.

The operating cycle for each train starts when it is pushed empty into a tunnel in whose
roof the ore loading hoppers and chutes have been cut, then being drawn slowly out while the
ore cascades into the cars from above. (See step “A” in the diagram below.) When the train
1s loaded, an operator releases the train to the main line control equipment which then handles
the train at speeds of up to 30 m.p.h. between the dumper and crusher. The four trains are moved
over the line in the sequence shown below.

At the dumper end of the run, the train is brought to a stop within 7% inches of a
predetermined spot and the dumping begins. The automatic equipment controls the advancing of
the train so that each car stops at exactly the same spot for unloading without further manual
intervention. Once the last car has been unloaded, the train heads into the tail track beyond
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the dumper, switch No. 1 moves to the reverse position, and the train starts northward toward
the loaders. If the single track between switches 2 and 3 is not occupied, then the train of
empties continues toward the passing siding and over switch No. 3 which has been lined for the
siding. Under normal conditions, another train passes the empty train here with non-stop meets
being the rule. As soon as there i1s an empty track in the loaders, the train moves into it and
the cycle repeats.

While the apparatus used in this system is quite complex, the principles of its operation
are not, and a brief description of them is given here. All decision making apparatus is mounted
at trackside and the equipment on board the engines only serves to make the train obey the command
instructions sent to it. Thus, the system functions much like a model train set-up, under control
from a remote location, with the control information transmitted over the two running rails.

Unlike a model railroad, the train wheels need not be insulated from each other as the coded
electrical control signals are picked off the rails inductively, ahead of the leading set of
wheels on either the locomotive or leading car. The code signals consist of 60 c.p.s. current,
switched on and off at various rates to represent different control commands. For example, current
pulses at a frequency of 37.5 pulses per minute are decoded by the equipment on the locomotive
and cause a service application of the brakes to be made. Other codes are 75 p.p.m. for a train
speed of 7.5m.p.h., 120 p.p.m. for 15m.p.h., 180 p.p.m. for 30 m.p.h., and 270 p.p.m. to reverse
direction of the train. A complete lack of code pulses, or a steady current causes emergency
application of the train brakes. The latter condition could be caused by broken rails,
improperly-lined switches, the presence of another train or malfunction of the control gear.

Thus, the system is seen to be “fail safe” in that most equipment failures will cause the train
to stop.

On the locomotive, the control signals actuate the engine throttle and the train brakes
exactly as would a human operator. Mounted on one of the driving axles is a speedometer generator
which supplies an electrical signal to the control gear to tell it if the train is moving and
at what speed. The train speed is maintained at the level called for by the control signal by
comparing it and the signal from the speedometer. If the actual speed is more than % m.p.h.
low, as might happen should the train encounter an upgrade, the throttle is opened wider. Once
the control-set speed is exceeded by % m.p.h., the throttle is closed and the train coasts on
1ts momentum. If the speed should increase to 2 m.p.h. over the control-set speed, a service
brake application is made and held until the speed drops to the correct level. This latter condition
1s, naturally, the result of the train encountering a downgrade in the direction of its travel.
By the techniqUe explained above, simple “on-off” devices can be used to handle the complex function
of train control.

At the loader and dumper terminals, i1t was desired to have remote control of the train
while 1t moved at very low speeds. At these locations, the control signals are of a different
type, being continuously variable modulation of a carrier frequency tone that is transmitted
to the locomotive inductively through wire loops laid between the rails. The train speed in
these areas is continuously variable from '/s to’/s m.p.h. within a tolerance of one-hundredth
m.p.h. An operator at each terminal controls the starting of the loading and dumping cycles
only; all other train movement commands are originated by the automatic control gear.

This installation of an automatic railway, rather than a conveyor belt, pipeline or truck
and road scheme illustrates graphically the utility and economy of the flanged wheel rolling
along a steel rail, a principle that has been in constant use for over a hundred years. Significant
too, 1s the elimination of manual control on the system. While it is doubtful that automatic
control such as this will see widespread use on the majority of Canadian railway lines, it 1is
possible, indeed hoped, that more use of these systems will be made on specialized railway operations

UCRS # 204 - 2



such as rapid transit lines and heavily trafficked, completely grade-separated main lines, in
order that the maximum economic benefit may be derived from them.

C.P.R. NEWS

> Ahigh-level flood control and conservation dam at Woodstock, Ontario which will channelise
the Thames River and Cedar Creek, will force relocation of the C.P.R.’s trackage to the north
side of the Thames sometime during 1963.

> The Board of Transport Commissioners has refused to approve a new fare tariff for the

Montreal - Lakeshore commuter service as filed by the Canadian Pacific Railway on December 14",
The railway had planned to increase the fares on the services by amounts of from 10% upwards
on January 1°, 1963. Single fares would not have been affected. The Board plans to set a date
and place for a public hearing on the proposed increases.

> Permission has been given the Canadian Pacific Railway towithdraw passenger service between
McKerrow Junction and Little Current, Ontario, effective February 28", 1963. The 39-mile branch
line was served by a mixed train originating in Sudbury.

> The C.P.R plans to build a 15%-mile branch line from Bredenbury, Saskatchewan (95 miles
east of Regina on the main line) to the potash plant of International Minerals and Chemicals

at Esterhazy (see Motive Power Notes).

> The City of Outremont, Quebec, a suburb of Montreal, plans to develop a 50-acre area now
owned by the C.P.R. for an industrial estate of some 50 plants, as indicated in the accompanying
diagram. The present railway yards on this land (Outremont Yard) were rendered largely surplus
by the opening of the Cote St. Luc Hump Classification Yard. (Town planners seem to have omitted
the line from Outremont to Park Avenue station in their diagram. It is presumed that this is
still required. - Editor)

Sketch: Map of proposed CPR development in Outremont, Quebec 0204-004.pcx
T.T.C. HAPPENINGS
Map: Map of TTC Excursion Route for December 9" Trip on Car 2850. 0204-005.pcx

A total of 39 members and friends participated in the Society’s last excursion of the
1962 season, which took the form of a four-hour tour of the east-end and central trackage of
the Toronto Transit Commission, using small Witt No. 2850. The weatherman co-operated with the
trip by giving us a bright, crisp day with just a trace of snow which had fallen the previous
night.

Eleven photo stops were made, which satisfied even the most avid photographer. Some of
the highlights of these stops included the Don River Bridge on Queen Street, which is scheduled
to be rebuilt starting this February; Woodbine Loop, (here, passing pedestrians were startled
by the rather unusual sight of about 15 stalwarts pushing 2850 along the track after its pole
caught in the wires in the loop); Exhibition Loop and Lighthouse Loop. The new Lipton Loop on
Gertrude Place was another highlight that caused a great deal of “neighbour interest”. This
stop marked the first occasion that a Witt had used the loop; it quite likely was the last, too!

As has come to be expected on our T.T.C. trips, everyone aboard thoroughly enjoyed the
outing, and as the days of the small Witt in Toronto are rapidly drawing to a close, interest
was expressed in at least one more such trip before they disappear. For more information on
this, see the notices in the U.C.R.S. Announcements column.
> As of mid-December, the following small Witt cars were in storage at Russell Division:

2700, 2704, 2706, 2708, 2710, 2712, 2714, 2716, 2722, 2724, 2728, 2734, 2738, 2746, 2752,

2756, 2760, 2772, 2774, 2776, 2782, 2796, 2800, 2810, 2812, 2814, 2818, 2824, 2826, 2828,

2836, 2848, 2874, 2880, 2882, 2892.
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Several of these cars had been damaged by fires set in them by local vandals, including
2714, 2716, 2708, 2810 and 2874.

A number of the cars stored at Russell have recently been sold to the Western Iron and
Metal Company for scrap. The cars are no longer sent to George Street Yard for removal of trucks
and underbody equipment, this job now being performed at the south end of tracks 21 and 22 at
Russell Yard. The car bodies are then loaded onto a special dolly owned by the scrap company
and hauled to the Unwin Avenue Disposal Area where they are dumped onto the ground. When a number
of bodies has accumulated at the disposal area they are set on fire to remove the wood parts
and then cut into manageable pieces with a cutting torch.

The following cars reached Unwin Avenue prior to January 1'", 1963: 2706, 2710, 2746,
27752, 2756, 2760, 2800, 2810, 2826, 2874 and 2882.

In spite of the scrapping drive now under way on these cars, a number of them still find
regular use on rush-hour runs on KINGSTON ROAD, BATHURST, FORT and DUPONT routes.

MAJOR CHANGES IN ROUTING OF KINGSTON ROAD TRIPPER

Effective Wednesday, January 2, 1963, considerable changes in the routing of the KINGSTON
ROAD TRIPPER service of the T.T.C. went into being. The old route via King and Dufferin Streets
to the Exhibition Loop was discontinued in favour of the following:

A.M. Rush Hour Service - From Bingham Loop, via Kingston Road, Queen and King to Roncesvalles

Carhouse, returning via the same route.

P.M. Rush Hour Service - From Russell Carhouse, via Queen and Dufferin to Dufferin and

King, thence via King, Queen and Kingston Road to Bingham Loop,

In addition to the above, there is an A.M. and P.M. Short Turn service, as before, via

Queen and King, looping downtown via Church, Wellington and York Streets.

The changes were made for the following reasons:

(a) The A.M. extension to Sunnyside will help alleviate the overcrowding of KING cars
eastbound between Sunnyside and Dufferin Street, caused by the abundance of apartment houses
in the area, by providing an additional service between these two points.

(b) The P.M. routing will help ease congestion between Church and Bathurst Streets. The
KING, BATHURST, FORT and KINGSTON ROAD TRIPPER services all operated west along this busy downtown
section.

(c) Conditions have proved to be undesirable at the Dufferin Exhibition Loop with both
the KINGSTON ROAD cars and the DUFFERIN bus using the loop at the same time.

In connection with the re-routing, an electric switch has been installed at King and
Roncesvalles, north-west and north, leading across the intersection into the carhouse, and at
Queen and Dufferin, west to south.

Map: Map of Revised TTC Route for Kingston Road Tripper. 0204-006.pcx
C.N.R. REPORT
> In a case of “history repeating i1tself”, the C.N.R. Clarkson station, on the Oakville

Subdivision 16 miles west of Toronto, was destroyed by fire early on Saturday, December 15%.
This was almost two years to the day after the Scarboro station, on the Oshawa Subdivision,
was gutted in an early morning fire, and as in the latter case, there was extensive loss of

pre-Christmas express shipments which were in the station at the time.

The Clarkson fire reportedly originated from a defective oil burner and broke out one
hour after the station had closed for the night. The destruction was quite complete and the
blaze took some five hours to bring under control, a nearby lumber yard being endangered during
the height of the blaze.
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> Referring again to Scarboro station, the latest change in the still temporary accommodations
at this location i1s the removal of the express office to the C.N.R. freight shed on Warden Avenue
south of Eglinton Avenue, and served by a spur track from the C.N.R.’s “Geco Loop” line. The
two car bodies formerly used for express office and storage purposes have been removed, and only
body 68636 1s in service, as the operator’s office, at the junction of the Oshawa and Uxbridge
Subdivisions.
> The spur line of the Oshawa Railway on King Street West in Oshawa, which serves three
coal and o1l companies, will probably be removed to a point east of Simcoe Street during 1963.
The City of Oshawa has been agitating for some time to have the C.N.R. remove this spur which
presently passes through the town’s main intersection. Imminent success in this endeavour would
appear to be indicated by the introduction of a bill in the Ontario Legislature during December
authorizing the city to pay the three companies served by the spur line $30,000 in compensation
for the loss or damage resulting from the removal of railway facilities; the companies at one
time demanded $300,000 in compensation. As the railway, the city and the companies are now in
agreement, approval of the Board of Transport Commissioners to the abandonment appears to be
just a formality.
> The C.N.R. has applied to the Board of Transport Commissioners for authority to close
the station at King City, mile 22.7, Newmarket Subdivision. A letter to local councils from
the Board indicates that they are considering the approval providing that the C.N.R. appoints
a local express agent to handle parcels. Two protest meetings of local councils were held with
C.N. officials during November.
> Redevelopment proposals for railway owned land continue to be in the news. The C.N.R.
has advertised for proposals to lease and redevelop the area at the southeast corner of Danforth
Avenue and Main Street in the east end of Toronto. The area is now occupied by a lumber company
and a fuel supplier. The bulk of the area lies directly north of the C.N.R. Danforth station
and has 1040 feet of frontage on the Oshawa Subdivision, as shown in the diagram at the left.
The C.N.R advertisement specified that submitted proposals must maintain access to and a parking
area for the existing station.
Map: Sketch of CNR land proposed for redevelopment at Danforth. 0204-007.pcx
> A capsule chronology of the Great Slave Lake Railway progress is as follows:

- Clearing operations commenced, February 12", 1962.

- Grading operations commenced, May 14, 1962.

- Track laying commenced, June 15", 1962.

-First revenue operation, October 30", 1962 a grain shipment fromManning to Roma, Alberta.

During the coming year, progress on the railway is expected to see grading carried all
the way to the northerly terminus of the line, Hay River, on Great Slave Lake, and the construction
of the track as far as the Meander River, which 1s 227 miles north of Roma. Construction on
the 2000-foot long, 165-foot high Meikle River bridge will be completed during 1963.

A C.N.R. class GR-12t 1200 h.p. road-switcher has been assigned to the G.S.L. as has
conductor’s van 78811. The latter has been repainted inbright yellowoverall with black underbody.
The C.N. insignia was applied to the side of the car directly below the cupola, and the words
GREAT SLAVE LAKE RAILWAY were spelled out along the side below the windows as well.
> The C.N.R. will soon begin construction of a new 14.74-mile branch line from a point on
the main line near Bathurst, New Brunswick, to the mine site of the Brunswick Mining and Smelting
Corporation, Limited.

> The C.N.R. recently demolished the frame roundhouse at Gravenhurst, Ontario, idle since
December, 1958. The Cochrane roundhouse is being renovated for use as a plywood plant.
> Included with this copy of the News/etter is a pamphlet advertising the Sunday-only
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Ski-trains to be operated by the C.N.R. from Toronto to Meaford. This train is the first concrete
example of results of the Collingwood Chamber of Commerce’s agitation for the restoration of
passenger service in that area. If these trains are well patronised, it may be possible that
some passenger service will be restored to the Meaford Subdivision. The results of the Ski-train
experiment will bear watching.

> The diamond (level crossing) of the Galt Subdivision of the C.P.R. and the Drumbo Subdivision
of the C.N. at Drumbo has been made automatic, and it 1s expected that the interlocking tower,
once staffed 24 hours a day, will be demolished.

At the time of the C.N.R. wreck at Wyoming several years ago, the Drumbo Subdivision,
between Paris Junction and Stratford, carried all the east-west mainline traffic to or fromSarnia,
making the tower a busy one indeed.

(W. E. Miller)

> The C.N.R. has extended piggyback service from Ontario points to Grand’ Mere, Quebec,
and from Ontario and Quebec points to Bathurst and Edmundston, NB.
> A 32-mile branch line will be constructed by the C.N.R. from Fort McMurray to Mildred

Lake, Alberta, site of a proposed oil sands processing plant to be erected by Great Canadian
011 Sands Limited. For the crossing of the Athabasca River which this branch involves, the railway
intends to move a 2000-foot long, 3250-ton bridge from its present location near Dunblane,
Saskatchewan, to Fort McMurray. The present location of the bridge is in an area which will
be inundated by the South Saskatchewan Dam project.

RENEW MEMBERSHIPS NOW
Have you renewed your membership for 1963 yet? If you have not, this may be the last issue of
the Newsletter youwill receive. Renewal fees are a modest $2.50 for Associate members and $3.50
for Resident members. Check your membership card and i1f it shows the expiry date of December
31.", 1962, send a cheque or money order now. (Please include 15¢ exchange on out-of-town cheques).
For those desiring faster delivery of the News/etter, especially to distant points, 1t
will be possible to offer First Class Mail delivery of your News/etter for $1.00 additional to
the normal membership dues. If you wish this service, please include the additional amount and
request 1t when renewing.

RAILWAYS OF SCANDINAVIA - FINLAND

By Robert J. Sandusky

Photo: AtPasilaengine shed, near Helsinki, No. 586 was seen heading a train of 4-wheeled passenger
cars. The engine was built in 1919 by Schwartzkopff of Berlin. Robert J. Sandusky0204-008.]pg
Map: Map of Valtionrautatiet - Finnish State Railway. 0204-009.pcx

After leaving Helsinki, a circular route was taken east to Kuovola, north to Piekséméki
and Kuopio, west to Jyvaskyla, Tampere and finally Turku Abo. The northern towns are a bit away
from the usual travel routes but are worthwhile visiting because of V.R’s interesting upcountry
operations and the scenic attractions of the lake systems.

At Hyvink&a shops one of V.R’s five 0-10-0T’s was in steam. This series is structurally
identical to the suburban 2-8-2T. In for shopping were several U.S. looking 2-10-0's, part of
20 built for USSR by Baldwin and Alco in 1946-7. With a change in coupling apparatus any of
these machines would look quite at home on North American rails. They are the only locos with
swinging bells and, not surprisingly, automatic stokers.

Stored in the scrap line was a rare little 1903 2-6-0 with cabbage stack, air pump and
6-wheel tender with cordwood racks, a true remnant of the past. It appeared to be the last survivor
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of over 200 such machines built in Switzerland, U.S.A., Sweden and Finland between 1886 and 1904.
As a contrast to 1t were 4 massive 4-6-4T passenger locos which looked somewhat more elaborate
than the usual Finnish design. As 1t turned out they were built by Henschel in 1941 for the
Estonian Railways but wartime requirements sent them to Finland instead. All are now retired.

The next hop was made in two short stages and served as an introduction to the two main
types of railcar. A train of small DM-7 class, Valmet railbuses was taken to Riihim&ki. They
are similar in design and seating to the TGOJ electric cars. The tubular steel seats add a spartan
touch to the interiors. These cars bounce a great deal as they approach their 95 km/h top speed
and one does not envy the itinerant, ubiquitous food vendor as she pilots her large basket of
goodies over the rough passage between cars. Vestibule doors are controlled by passengers who
use sets of buttons inside or outside the car. Any inadvertently left open are closed frommaster
control after starting. Following this was a run to Lahti in one of the larger DM-4 cars, also
built by Valmet and less numerous than the DM-7. The former can haul 3 matching trailers or
a pair of standard carriages, though acceleration is low under these conditions.

The main line through Lahti was built from Riithimdki to St. Petersburg (Leningrad) during
famine years. It was designed to connect with inland lake transportation at Lahti and Lappeenranta
and was completed in 1870. Uponarrival at Lahti we were treated to the sight of an 0-6-0T woodburner
shunting in front of the large brick station. It looked quite incongruous beside the modern
control tower nearby.

Photo: Withmuch fussing and steaming, 0-6-0T No. 787 switches flatcars destined for the U.S.S.R.
at Hyvink&d. The two headlamps are acetylene-powered! Robert J. Sandusky 0204-010.ipg

One of Finland’s narrow gauge railways used to pass through Lahti. The 2'-5%" Loviisa
and Vesijarvi became a broad gauge branch in 1960, but just across the street from the station
was an L. & V. train on display, still resting upon a short length of the original line. A few
cans of paint would improve the appearance of loco #7, an Orenstein & Koppel 2-8-0, one boxcar
and a “kondukt60rivaunu”. A few other traces of the line could be seen in town.

Kuovola, with its new station and double roundhouse, 1s an important junction. This large
centre of steamoperation, using 2-8-2, 4-6-2, 4-6-0 and 0-6-0T types (along with another 0-10-0T),
18 to be dieselized by 1964. Through passenger stock of the Soviet railway system, running from
Helsinki to Moscow, was observed passing through Kuovola (where the line divides to run north
or to the eastern border). The heavy, green, steel cars were an unusual contrast to the normal
diet of dark brown on V.R’s wood-sheathed carriages.

Moving north to Mikkeli produced more woodburners; a 2-6-4T yard switcher and a retired
2-8-0. The latter was one of the few survivors of V.R’s second order of 2-8-0's, built in 1903.

Along this line it 1S common to see water towers built integrally with cordwood sheds. The
economics of burning wood in Finland have been justified by the necessity for the country to
import i1ts coal and oil from Poland, Russia, France and Britain. (Judging by the remarks of
onedriver the imported coal 1s not always of the best steaming quality.) V.R. haulsmany trainloads
of wood for 1ts own consumption and one eye-catching feature at some terminals (notably Pieksamaki)
1s the enormous reserve of cordwood, stacked in orderly piles which resemble low, wooden sheds
with peaked roofs. Various classes of 4-6-0 and 2-8-0 (including some of the newest 1944 2-8-0's)
are fitted with balloon stacks. In addition, many of the older types use acetylene headlamps,
(two on the pilot beam and often a third on the smokebox), fed from a master cylinder mounted
on one running board. Several such engines were being fuelled quite expeditiously at Pieks&maki
by means of a combination coaling and “wooding” tower from which 4-wheel carts on the upper level
spilled their contents down a chute into the tender at the same time as water was being taken
from a trackside standpipe.

Photo: No. 488 of Finnish Railways 1s seen shunting passenger cars at Mikkeli. The engine was

UCRS # 204 - 7



built at Tampere in 1909. Robert J. Sandusky 0204-011.ipg
Photo: A wood-burning 2-8-0 in 19627 No. 904 of the Finnish Railways was built in 1928 by NOHAB,

and was seen at Pieksdmdki. Robert J. Sandusky 0204-012.ipg
Photo: 2-8-0No. 917, a Lokomo product of 1931 1s seenwooding up at the wooding plant at Pieksamaki .
Robert J. Sandusky photo. 0204-013.ipg

Service by mixed train was sampled next as a 4-6-0 headed up one of the 8 trains per day
which run from Piekséméki north through Kuopio. Several 2-8-0's emitting white clouds of birch
smoke were crossed on the way up. Kuopio has a busy roundhouse and backshop where the spare
shunter 1s a tiny Borsig 0-4-0T. A 1917 Alco 2-8-0 was found there, looking like a refugee from
a tropical banana road, along with another 1903 2-8-0 being held for V.R’s historical collection.

Steamer services operate as far north as Kuopio, their draught being limited to 2.4 metres.

The return to Turku was punctuated by stops at Jyvdskyld and Tampere. Jyvaskyld is at
one end of a long lake (is there a Finnish town that isn’t?) and close to the station 1s the
inevitable steamer landing. In this case it i1s the starting point for a 100km cruise south to
Lahti. The railway line from the east to this town was built for strategic reasons just after
World War I and became part of a secondary east-west route. Tampere, a large and clean industrial
city, 18 also well-endowed with steamer routes to the north and south. It is a centre of much
rail activity (but no tram system) and recommended overnight accommodation is the Emmaus which
overlooks the main line station and yard.

No doubt the Tampere - Helsinki line would have been included in recent electrification
proposals placed before the Finnish Parliament, had the plans been approved. It now appears
that V.R’s future is complete dieselization by 1970. Heavier rails are continuing to be laid
as part of the overall improvements to the system and larger locomotives of up to 2800 h.p. are
planned for future deliveries.

Passing through Humppila, south of Tampere, one of the two remaining 75cm lines, the
Jokioisten, was seen branching off to Forssa. Several transporter wagons were in the yard.
These low vehicles enable 5' gauge wagons to be moved over the branch line.

Photo: V.R. No. 1001 is a class Hr-1 passenger engine built by Lokomo in 1940. The “extra
cylinder” in the cylinder saddle is only a snifter valve. Robert J. Sandusky 0204-014.ipg

At Turku Abo, there was time to tour most of the tram system which consists of three
metre-gauge lines. The transfers issued on the cars are imprinted with a small route map showing
transfer points and making it quite easy to get about. Route 3 described a loop around town
while Nos. 1 & 2 projected branches out from it in two opposite directions. Route 1 was the
domain of the newest double - truck cars, built in Finland in 1956, while 4-wheelers of uncertain
age were serving the other two lines. All trackage was street running or side-of-road.

(To be concluded next month)

MOTIVE POWER NOTES.
> It 1s reported that 25 steam locomotives are at present stored at the Canadian Pacific’s
Angus Shops in Montreal. These engines, none of them even remotely fit for service, include:
4-4-0's 29 and 144; 4-6-0's 424, 490, 492, 842, 894, 999 1088 and 1095; 4-6-2"s 1201, 1227, 1270,
2409, 2454 and 2231; 4-6-4"s 2816, 2827, 2839 and 2858; 4-4-4 No. 2928; 2-8-0 No. 3388; 2-8-2's
5361 and 5405; and 0-6-0 No. 6271. Eight of these locomotives will ultimately be displayed at
the Canadian Railroad Historical Association’s museum project at Delson, Quebec. The numbers
of these units include 29, 144, 492, 999, 2231, 2928, 3388 and 6271.

(G. A. Matheson)
> Two more freight motors are reported to be sold by the Canadian Pacific. G.R.R. 226 and
L.E.& N. 337 have had pilots, poles and traction motors removed prior to their trip to the Iowa
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Terminal Railway at Mason City, Iowa. This 10-mile switching and coal-hauling road already has
7 electric locomotives, but none as heavy or powerful as the two they may be buying from the
Canadian road.

(W. E. Miller)
> C.N.R. 4-6-0 No. 1033, which had been in storage at Allandale for the last two years,
was recently shopped and repainted at Spadina roundhouse prior to its shipment to a buyer in
the United States, reportedly in the Philadelphia area.

CHRONOLOGY OF T.T.C. M-1 CLASS

Now that the 5300-series subway cars of the T.T.C. have become part of the regular operations
on the Yonge subway line, 1t would be interesting to review some facts about them and their early
trial runs. The 36 cars were ordered in December, 1960, from the Montreal Locomotive Works on
their sales order No. SO-6000 and are classified by the T.T.C. as class M-1, and will be numbered
from 5300 to 5335 inclusive. The serial numbers of the cars were not assigned strictly
consecutively, but rather according to the scheme whereby the even-numbered cars 5300 to 5334
carry the serial numbers 83324 to 83341 and 5301 to 5335 carry serial numbers 83856 to 83873
respectively.

The first car, 5300, was shipped from Montreal aboard the special 85-foot C.P.R. flat
car No. 418125 on April 13™, 1962. The following dates are significant in the operation of
the cars:

April 24™, 1962

Power put on cars 5300-5301 while preliminary checks were made.
The cars then operated in the yard under their own power.
Further tests were made with 5300-5301 in the Davisville Yards.
Test runs were made on the length of the Yonge subway line after
the close of regular service at night.
April 29", 1962 - A demonstration run for the benefit of the Commissioners and
representatives of the Press, using cars 5300-01, was made, from
Davisville to Union Station and return.
May 1%, 1962 - Cars 5300-01 were demonstrated to delegates to the American Transit
Association Conference being held in Toronto. A run was made from
Davisville to Union Station and return, via Eglinton.
September 30", 1962 - Three two-car trains (5302-03, 5304-05, and 5306-07) were used in
revenue service for the first time on this date. This operationwas repeated
on Sunday, October 7" and again on Sunday, October 14",
October 16", 1962 - First revenue operation of a six-car train took place on this date.
Cars used included 5302 to 5307 inclusive.

From this last date onwards, a full six-car train was operated regularly in revenue service,
as one of the regular runs of the Yonge service. On Sundays, the operation was continued using
two-car trains. As further cars were placed in service additional six-car trains were used to
provide regular week-day base service, as well as being used on Sundays. An equivalent number
(based on passenger capacity) of the Gloucester cars were placed in storage as the class M-1
carswere put into service. Cars 5300-01 were placed in storage west of Union Station in September,
1962, pending modifications required to them, and were not among the cars first placed in service.
(R. F. Corley)

April 25", 1962
April 26™, 1962

RAPID TRANSIT PROGRESS
Map: Map of TTC Bloor - Danforth Subway Route. 0204-015.pcx
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> The T.T.C. is calling for tenders for contract No. D-7 on the Bloor-Danforth-University
subway, covering the construction of the Greenwood Yard and Shop facilities. Included in the
construction program will be:

- General Subway Car Overhaul and Repair Shop,

- Way and Structures Building,

- Steam Plant and Incinerator,

- Portal Building and Subway Yard Throat,

- Gate House,

- Stores Building,

- Services and FaciLities to all buildings,

- Yard Lighting, Fire Protection and Security Fencing.

Two other contracts were recently awarded on the Bloor project, being those bearing numbers
D-2A and D-3. The former, awarded to Dineen Construction Company, involves the building of
Sherbourne Station, lying between the east side of Sherbourne Street and Glen Road (see diagram),
while the latter contract went to C.A. Pitts General Contractor, Limited, and covers the section
from the Glen Road bridge to the west end of the Prince Edward Viaduct, including the Rosedale
Ravine covered bridge (see Newsletter 196, Page 59).
> The T.T.C has asked its Subway Construction Branch and Board of Consulting Engineers for
anew technical and financial report on ways and means to speed up construction of the Bloor -Danforth
subway so that completion could be achieved in 1965 instead of 1967-68, including the recently
proposed extensions to Royal York Road and Warden Avenue. There has been heavy political pressure
recently for consideration of this by the Commission.
> Although operation on the Spadina rapid transit line 18 probably still a good many years
in the future, the first piece of construction on the facility will actually be undertaken during
1963. A contractor recently engaged for the building of the underpass structures for the Spadina
Expressway north from Lawrence Avenue will construct the Lawrence rapid transit station as part
of the overall job at this location.
> Construction of a two-storey shopping centre over the T.T.C. Davisville subway yard and
carhouse, a project much feared by local railway enthusiasts, has been delayed by the Ontario
Municipal Board, which has referred the matter back to the Toronto City Council to deal specifically
with objections of neighbouring residents who are particularly disturbed over a proposed road
access to the development through a residential area from Chaplin Crescent. Accordingly, a few
more months of free entertainment may be seen from the Chaplin bridge before construction destroys
the panorama forever.

MEMBERS’ ADVERT ISEMENTS

FOR SALE: Steam photos of most Canadian short-lines, such as: Osborne Bay Wharf, Canadian
Collieries, MacMillan and Bloedel, Gulf Pulp and Paper, Comox Logging, etc., available only in
5" x 8" size - 50¢ each. Also available, photos of other roads in smaller size - 15¢ each.
Selling out my entire collection of U.S.A. roads class 1 as well as short-line. Write, stating
wants. E. Emery, 398 Runnymede Road, Toronto 9.

MOTIVE POWER NOTES

> Four diesels have been retired or sold from the C.N.R. system during 1962. These include
No. 43, class ER-6a (70 ton, 600 h.p., built by G.E. in 1950) which was sold to the Acadia Coal
Company in Stellarton, NS, on May 30™; No. 3 class ER-4b (44 ton, 400 h.p., built by G.E. in
1956) which has been sold to the International Minerals and Chemicals of Esterhazy, Saskatchewan,
and No. 78 on the Grand Trunk Western, class GS-6a (100 ton, 600 h.p., built by E.M.D. in 1938)
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which was retired in April. In addition, No. 42, class ER-6a, has been leased to the Gasperian
Paper Company at Chandler, Quebec. The engine, repainted in the new colours was delivered to
Chandler on August 10" on mixed train No. 201 from Campbellton, NB. While the original lease
agreement is for six months, it may be extended if the company has continuing need for the engine.
Of the 16 class ER-6a locomotives still in active service for the C.N., only one operates on
the Canadian mainland, being employed as the shop switcher at Moncton. The remaining units are
the mainstay of the motive power fleet on Prince Edward Island.
> Although the British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority (formerly B.C. Electric) have
designed a new crest for their transit vehicles which were formerly operated by the B.C. Electric,
the railway division will retain the red “thunderbird” emblem, with the traditional red and yellow
paint scheme Motive power on the system at present includes nine 900 h.p., M.U.-equipped G.M.
switchers Nos. 900 to 908, four 660 h.p., 70 ton G.E. switchers, also M.U.-equipped (Nos. 940
to 943) and two ex-Oregon Electric steeple cab freight motors, Nos. 960 and 961. The electrics
are confined to a short section of electrified trackage in the Carrall Street yard in Vancouver.
(J. A. Rushton)
> Penvidic Construction Company, a railway construction company located in Burlington,
Ontario, has sold i1ts 30-ton Plymouth gasoline locomotive to Atlas Steels of Welland, after the
unit had been out of service for more than a year.
> General Motors Diesel Limited, London, Ontario, recently shipped a 72-ton diesel-hydraulic
locomotive (Model GMDH-1) to Pakistan. The locomotive, rated at 800 h.p., is powered by two
12 cylinder diesel engines coupled to two hydraulic transmissions, one for each truck. The
centrally-mounted cab has a swivel-mounted control stand that can be swung to either side of
the cab for good visibility in either direction. This unit is slated for use on the Mangla Dam
project being carried out by the West Pakistan water power and development authority.
> The Sydney and Louisburg Railway has completed its transition from steam to diesel motive
power with the purchase of second-hand diesel locomotives, as was their policy during steam days.
The present roster of motive power 1s as follows:

Number Horsepower Builder & Date Former Owner and Number

60 550 G.E., 1949 P.G.E. No. 553

61 660 Alco, 1940 C. & N.W. No. 1202

200 1000 M.L.W., 1961 Purchased new

201 1000 M.L.W., 1961 Purchased new

202 1000 M.L.W., 1961 Purchased new

203 1000 Alco, 1944 M. & St. L. No. 201, ex-744
204 1000 Alco, 1947 M. & St. L. No. 219, ex-547
205 1000 Alco, 1945 M. & St. L. No. 205, ex-645
206 1000 Alco, 1944 M. & St. L. No. 200, ex-244
207 1000 Alco, 1944 M. & St. L. No. 207, ex-944
208 1000 Alco, 1946 M. & St. L. No. 217, ex-946
209 1000 Alco, 1950 Soo Line No. 2360

210 1000 Alco, 1950 Soo Line No. 2362

211 1000 Alco, 1951 Soo Line No. 2364

212 1000 Alco, 1951 Soo Line No. 2365

In addition, Minneapolis and St. Louis 1000 h.p. unit No. 208 (ex-No. 945, Alco, 1945)

was purchased to be cannibalized for parts for other Alco units. It never received a S. & L.
road number.

(W.C.R.A. STEAM CHEST)
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U.C.R.S. ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Annual Meeting of the Society will be held at the time of the regular January meeting
on Friday, JanuarY 18", 1963, in RoomNo. 8 Central Y.M.C.A. 40 College Street, Toronto, commencing
at 8:30 p.m. Central Y M.C.A. is located on the north side of College Street between Yonge and
Bay Streets (opposite Eaton’s College Street) and is convenient to DUPONT, CARLTON and YONGE
SUBWAY services. At this meeting, the reports of the Officers will be presented and the election
of Directors for the year 1963 will take place.

Nominations for Directors may be made prior to the meeting in writing, presenting a signed
statement of the nominee’s willingness to stand for election and the signatures of nominator
and seconder. Nominations may be made from the floor at the meeting provided the nominee is
present at the time. All Resident members are urged to attend and exercise their vote.

Entertainment will be offered after the business meeting.

HAMILTON CHAPTER MEETING
The Hamilton Chapter of the Society will meet in the Board Room of the C.N.R. Hamilton
Station on Friday, January 25", commencing at 8:00 p.m. sharp. Entertainment at the meeting

will be a showing of colour slides of British Railways steam trains taken during the past summer
by E.A. Jordan.

FEBRUARY OUTDOOR MEETING

The February outdoor meeting of the Society will be held on Friday the 1' of that month
at Roncesvalles and Queen, where action on both the C,N. and the T.T.C. may be observed
simultaneously.

SOCIETY EXCURSIONS

On Saturday, January 26™, the Society will sponsor a four-hour trolley excursion on the
T.T.C. usingWitt cars. Car 2300, the last largeWitt on the system, will beused if it is available,
along with a small Witt. The trip will leave from the northeast corner of Bay and Wellington
Streets at 1:00 p.m. and a complete trip over the DUPONT route will be made. The fare will be
$2.00 and tickets may be obtained in advance from the Excursion Committee or on board the cars.
> On Sunday, January 27™, it will be “all aboard” for the circle tour around Lake Simcoe
on the “Arctic Express”! Accommodations available include Bedrooms, Solarium-Lounge Chairs,
deluxe coach seats, or a soft spot in a baggage car full of snow. The latter car will also have
110-volt outlets for your tape recorders (or electric blankets), and a Cafeteria car will be
serving hot food and drinks during the day. A seat anywhere on the train can be yours for only
$6.00 ($7.00 if you forget to renew your membership or don’t purchase your ticket in advance).
Leaving Toronto Union Station at 9:00 a.m. and returning by 6:30 p.m., the train will be hauled
by C.N.R.’s 6167 (a steam engine, incidentally!)

THE CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS OF THE SOCIETY

The attention of all members is drawn to the mimeographed draft revision to the By-Laws
and Regulations of the Upper Canada Railway Society, as mailed to all members with this issue.
For some time the need has been felt of updating and expanding the Constitution in order that
1t might more accurately reflect the nature and activities of the Society, and provide for the
formation of Committees and Chapter groups. To this end, the Directors appointed a Constitution
Revision Committee some two years ago to investigate a general overhaul of the By-Laws and
Regulations, and the present draft is the product of the Committee.

No actual steps are to be taken to amend or replace the existing By-Laws and Regulations
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until such time as all members of the Society have had an opportunity to review and comment upon
the draft revision. The Directors urge all members to peruse the proposed Constitution and to
mail any and all comments to: S. I. Westland, Chairman, U.C.R.S. Constitution Revision Committee,
36 Fishleigh Drive, Scarborough, Ontario, prior to February 28", 1963. During March and April
of this year the Directors plan to review the entire draft in detail, together with all
communications in connection therewith received from the membership-at-large, and then draw up
a revised Constitution. Following this, the necessary legal steps will be taken to place the
revisions into effect.
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